
MINUTES FOR MINSTER ZONING BOARD OF APPEAL 

 
7:00 PM  05/12/2020 

I. Zoning Board Present (P) or Absent (A): 

 

Steve Bruns P Brad Garmann, Pres P 

Ned Sielschott P Linda Kitzmiller, Vice Pres P 

Jean Hinker P Jim Hearn  P 

Don Harrod ZA P   

    

 Also Present: 

Dennis Kitzmiller David Puthoff 

Brad Middendorf  

  

 

II. Public meeting called to order by President Garmann at 7:00 pm 

Two items were discussed in the public meeting: 

 

a)  A variance request by Brad Middendorf owner of the property located at 138 South Main Street.  

Mr. Middendorf would like to install a privacy fence on the south property line of his property.  

He is requesting that the proposed fence be within one foot of the property line.  B. Middendorf 

explained that he would like to install a six-foot-high gray vinyl privacy fence on the south side 

of his property. Currently, there is an existing fence along with a hedge row that will be removed.  

The current driveway is located about 14 inches off of the property line and he would like to 

install the fence between the driveway and the property line. The fence would be setback from 

Main street a distance comparable to the neighbor’s house.  J. Hinker asked if the existing fence 

and hedges would be removed and B. Middendorf replied that they would be. N. Sielschott 

questioned whether or not he would be able to maintain both sides of the fence.  B. Middendorf 

explained that he has talked with the neighbor and that either the neighbor or himself will mow 

around the fence and with the fence being vinyl there should be little to no maintenance.  D. 

Harrod stated that Ed Hoelscher had indeed contacted him and that he expressed no issues with 

the fence being erected.  

 

b) A conditional use request submitted by David Puthoff owner of the property at 61 South Main 

Street. Mr. Puthoff would like to install two beehives at the northwest corner of his garage.  D. 

Puthoff explained that he has been a bee keeper for some time and that he would like to again 

keep bees at his residence in town.  He stated that the hives are inside of his garage and fly into 

the hives through a tube sticking out of the garage.  He stated that there are three boxes in each 

hive and that the boxes were installed about a week and a half ago.  D. Puthoff stated that the 

honey would flow out of the hives and be harvested without interaction with the bees.  He stated 

that he can shut the tubes to the hives during the Oktoberfest to keep the bees from being a 

nuisance.  S. Bruns inquired about a source of water.  D. Puthoff replied that there is water built 

into the hive and that he keeps a five-gallon bucket outside the garage for access by the bees.  J. 

Hinker asked about the amount of honey produced and D. Puthoff stated that it would be 

between 20 and 40 lbs. a year.  S. Bruns asked about meeting the fence requirement.  The hives 

are located at least 25 feet from all property lines so this requirement is not enforceable. D. 

Puthoff went on to further explain that he has installed a 24-inch wind barrier in front of the 

tubes to prevent wind from causing problems in the hives. S. Bruns also inquired about the type 

of bees.  D. Puthoff explained that they were Canolian Bees. N. Sielschott questioned the village’s 

liability if someone would be stung by a bee and the village allowed Mr. Puthoff to install the 



hives. J. Hearn explained that the village would have no liability in this situation.  L. Kitzmiller 

commended Mr. Puthoff for wanting to take care of the bees.   

 

President Garmann called the regular meeting to order at 7:17 pm. 

 

III. The minutes from the March 10, 2020 were read.  Being no further changes to the minutes, N. 

Sielschott motioned and J. Hinker seconded to approve the minutes as presented.  All members voted 

in favor of the motion to approve the minutes. 

  

IV. New Business:  

 

1) A variance request by Brad Middendorf owner of the property located at 138 South Main Street.  

Mr. Middendorf would like to install a privacy fence on the south property line of his property.  

He is requesting that the proposed fence be within one foot of the property line.  The zoning 

code calls for a fence to be located off of the property line at a distance to where both sides of the 

fence can be maintained while on the owner’s property.  Being no further discussion, N. 

Sielschott moved to grant the request. L. Kitzmiller seconded the motion. All members present 

voted in favor of the motion. 

 

2) A conditional use request submitted by David Puthoff owner of the property at 61 South Main 

Street. Mr. Puthoff would like to install two beehives at the northwest corner of his garage.  The 

keeping of bees within the village is subject to a conditional use permit from the Zoning Board 

of Appeals.  It was noted that this is the first request to install beehives since the new regulations 

went into effect.  Being no further discussion, L. Kitzmiller moved to grant the conditional use 

request. S. Bruns seconded the motion. All members present voted in favor of the motion.  

 

 

V. Old Business 

 

1) L. Kitzmiller inquired about the Brian Schmiesing building on South Hamilton. It was noted that 

the zoning board had turned down a variance request for a garage to be built on that site. D. 

Harrod explained that the building meet all of the requirements of a principal building on a 

single lot and thus conformed to the zoning code.  D. Harrod also explained because it is 

considered a separate building site that the owner was required to install all new utility services 

to the property.    Harrod will watch to make sure that no commercial vehicles are occupying the 

garage space as this is a residential district. 

 

2) N. Sielschott inquired about a van parked along the canal on South Frankfort Street.  D. Harrod 

stated that he would inquire about the vehicle registration. 

 

3) It was noted that Ted Heckman has started to store a number of vehicles behind his property on 

North Hanover Street.  D. Harrod will follow up to see what can be done. 

 

4)  D. Harrod also explained that in this month’s Town Crier Newsletter an article will discuss 

recreational vehicles being parked in residential areas. 

 

VI. Comments:  

 

1)  There were no comments. 

 

VII.  Adjournment 



 

1) S. Bruns and N. Sielschott seconded a motion to adjourn at 7:45 pm. Motion passed.   

 


